

# MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the  
**LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY**  
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library  
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from electronic originals  
(may include minor formatting differences from printed original)

**LAWS**  
**OF THE**  
**STATE OF MAINE**

**AS PASSED BY THE**

**ONE HUNDRED AND TWENTY-EIGHTH LEGISLATURE**

**FIRST REGULAR SESSION**  
**December 7, 2016 to August 2, 2017**

**THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR**  
**FIRST REGULAR SESSION**  
**NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS**  
**NOVEMBER 1, 2017**

**PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES**  
**IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,**  
**TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4.**

---

---

**Augusta, Maine**  
**2017**

tainer" does not include a container composed of cardboard in combination with a plastic liner.

See title page for effective date.

## CHAPTER 11

S.P. 96 - L.D. 308

### An Act To Prohibit Charging Maine Seniors Higher Automobile Insurance Premiums Based Solely on Their Age

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 24-A MRSA §2916, as enacted by PL 1973, c. 339, §1, is amended to read:

#### §2916. Automobile insurance, cancellation, nonrenewal and certain changes because of age, prohibited

~~No~~ An insurance company authorized to transact business in this State ~~shall~~ may not refuse to issue, cancel or ~~refuse to renew~~, reduce liability limits, ~~refuse to renew~~ for or increase the charge a higher premium of any automobile insurance for a policy of any kind whatsoever for the sole reason that ~~the~~ an applicant for coverage, a person to whom such policy has been issued or another insured driver has reached a certain age.

See title page for effective date.

## CHAPTER 12

H.P. 23 - L.D. 22

### An Act To Repeal the Requirement That Municipalities License Roller-skating Rinks

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 8 MRSA §601 is repealed.

See title page for effective date.

## CHAPTER 13

H.P. 31 - L.D. 30

### An Act To Amend the Law Governing Special Amusement Permits for Liquor Licensees

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 28-A MRSA §653, sub-§2, ¶D-1 is enacted to read:

D-1. Failure to obtain, or comply with the provisions of, a permit for music, dancing or entertainment required by a municipality or, in the case of an unincorporated place, the county commissioners;

Sec. 2. 28-A MRSA §1054, as amended by PL 1991, c. 377, §16, is further amended to read:

#### §1054. Permit for music, dancing or entertainment

~~1. Activities and entertainment prohibited. Without the permit described in subsection 2, no license for sale of liquor to be consumed on the premises may allow on the premises the following:~~

- ~~A. Any music, except radio or other mechanical device;~~
- ~~B. Any dancing; or~~
- ~~C. Entertainment of any sort.~~

2. Permit required. If A municipality or, in the case of an unincorporated place, the county commissioners may require a licensee for sale of liquor to be consumed on the premises provides activities or entertainment listed in subsection 1, the licensee must first to obtain a special amusement permit for music, dancing or entertainment from the municipality or, in the case of an unincorporated place, the county commissioners of the county in which the licensed premises are located. The permit must specify which activities are prohibited on the licensed premises and may include a list of which activities are authorized, in accordance with local ordinances or regulations adopted by the municipality or unincorporated place.

3. Term of permit. A permit is valid only for the license year of the existing license.

~~4. Public hearing on permit application. Before granting a permit and after reasonable notice to the municipality and the applicant, the municipal officers shall hold a public hearing at which the municipal officers shall take testimony of the applicant and any interested members of the public.~~

5. Permit requirements. The municipal officers shall grant a permit unless they find that issuance of the permit would be detrimental to the public health,

~~safety or welfare, or would violate municipal ordinances or rules and regulations.~~

**6. Issuance or denial of permit.** Within 15 days of receiving the permit application, the municipal officers shall give the applicant written notice of their decision.

A. If the municipal officers deny a licensee a permit, they shall provide the licensee with the reasons for the denial in writing.

B. The licensee may not reapply for a permit within 30 days after denial of an application for a permit.

**7. Municipal suspension or revocation of a permit.** After a public hearing preceded by notice to interested parties, the municipal officers may suspend or revoke any permits which they have issued under this section on the grounds that the music, dancing or entertainment permitted constitutes a detriment to the public health, safety or welfare, or violates municipal ordinances or regulations.

**8. Appeal procedure.** Any licensee who has applied for a permit and has been denied, or whose permit has been revoked or suspended, may appeal the decision to the municipal board of appeals, as defined in Title 30-A, section 2691, within 30 days of the denial, suspension or revocation. The municipal board of appeals, if the municipality has such a board, may grant or reinstate the permit if it finds that:

A. The permitted activities would not constitute a detriment to the public health, safety or welfare, or violate municipal ordinances or regulations; or

B. The denial, revocation or suspension was arbitrary and capricious.

~~**9. Admission.** A licensee who has been issued an amusement permit may charge admission in designated areas approved by the special amusement permit.~~

~~**10. Definition of entertainment.** For the purposes of this section, "entertainment" includes any amusement, performance, exhibition or diversion for patrons or customers of the licensed premises, whether provided by professional entertainers or by full-time or part-time employees of the licensee whose incidental duties include activities with an entertainment value.~~

**11. Municipal ordinances or regulations.** A municipality shall adopt ordinances or authorize the municipal officers to establish written regulations governing the following aspects of the permits.

A. These ordinances or regulations ~~shall~~ must govern:

(1) The issuance, suspension and revocation of these permits;

(2) The classes of permits and fees for the issuance of these permits;

(3) The music, dancing or entertainment permitted under each class; and

(4) Other limitations on these activities required to protect the public health, safety and welfare.

B. These ordinances or regulations may specifically determine:

(1) The location and size of premises to which the permits may apply;

(2) The facilities that may be required for the permitted activities on those premises;

(3) The hours during which the permitted activities may take place; and

(4) The lighting level required, which may be lowered when the entertainment is provided.

**12. Unincorporated place.** If a licensed ~~premise~~ is premises are located in an unincorporated place, the county commissioners of the county in which the unincorporated place is located shall grant, suspend or revoke permits in the same manner and with the same authority as municipal officers. The county commissioners shall adopt regulations in the same manner as municipal officers.

See title page for effective date.

---



---

## CHAPTER 14

### S.P. 51 - L.D. 132

#### An Act To Authorize Podiatrists To Perform Certain Routine Procedures

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:**

**Sec. 1. 32 MRSA §3551, sub-§4,** as enacted by PL 1993, c. 600, Pt. A, §229, is amended to read:

**4. Practice of podiatric medicine.** "Practice of podiatric medicine" means the diagnosis and treatment of maladies of the human foot and ankle by medical, surgical or mechanical means. ~~Practice of podiatric medicine~~ "Practice of podiatric medicine" includes the performance of a history and physical on a podiatrist's preoperative patient and upon the patient's admission into a hospital or ambulatory surgical center. "Practice of podiatric medicine" includes the administration of local anesthesia in conjunction with the practice of podiatry. The use of general anesthesia is permitted in conjunction with the practice of podiatry when administered or supervised by a medical or osteopathic physician who assumes responsibility for the administra-